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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
SOTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
INDIANAPOLISDIVISION

UNITED STATESSECURITIESAND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,
Case No01:13¢v-1361SEB-MJD
V.

JOHN K. MARCUM AND GUARANTY : Hon. Sarah Evans Barker
RESERVES TRUST, LLC, :

Defendants,
and

MARCUM COMPANIESLLC,

Relief Defendant

ORDER OF PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION, ASSET FREEZE,
AND OTHER ANCILLARY RELIEF

Having considere@laintiff’'s Ex Parte Motion for a TemporaryRestraining @derand
Ancillary Relief (Dkt # 2), Plaintiff's Memorandum in Support of Ex Parte Motion for a
Temporary Restraining Order and Ancillary Reliekt # 3) and accompanying evidentiary
materials, and the Complai(kt # 1) filed by plaintiff U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (“the EC”), as well aghe Order for Emporary Restraining Order andh@r
Ancillary Relief (Dkt # 11)and the Asset Freeze Ord&kt # 12) entered by the Court on
August 26, 2013along withPlaintiff’'s Motion for Order ofPreliminary Injunction, Asset
FreezeandOther Ancillary Relief(Dkt # 16)and accompanying evidentiary materjale Court
finds that theSEChas made a properima facie showing that: (iMarcum and GR™irectly or

indirectly engaged in the violations alleged in the Complaint; (iietieea reasonable likelihood
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that these violations will be repeated,; (iii) unless restrained and enjoir@diby of this Court,
Marcum, GRT, and Marcum LL@ay dissipate, conceal or transfer from the jurisdiction of this
Court assets that could be subject to an order of disgorgement or an order to paya@netaryn
penalty in this action; and (iv) entry of a preliminary injunction, asset fre@zkeorder for other
equitable relief as set forth below is necessary and appropriate:

A. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case and over
defendants John K. Marcum and Guaranty Reserves Trust,drdtelief defendant Marcum
Companies LLC

B. There is good cause to believe ttret SEC ultimately will be able to estadtii
thatdefendants have engaged and are about to engage in transactions, practices araf courses
business that constitute violations of Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securtt@s1A83 (the
“Securities Act”) [L5 U.S.C. § 77e(a) and T¢yg.

C. There isgood cause to believe that the SEC ultimately will be able to establish
thatdefendants have engaged and are likely to engage in transactions, practices asdtours
business that violate Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 4fgecAct) [15
U.S.C. § 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. 88 240.10b-5] thereunder.

D. There isgood cause to believe that the SEC ultimately will be able to establish
thatdefendants have engaged and are likely to engage in transactions, practices asdtours
budness that violat&ection 17(a)(1)17(a)(2) and 17(a)(3)f the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 88§
779(a)(1), 77q(a)(2) and 77q(a)(3)]

E. There isgood cause to believe that, unlessliminarily enjoined by Order of this

Court, defendants will continue to engage in such transactions, acts, practices sesl @aour



business and in such violatioribatdefendants’ illicit gainghat could otherwise be subject to an
order of disgorgememhay be dissipate@ndthatdocuments could be destroyed.

F. There is good cause believe thaunless frozen by Order of this Court, assets
that otherwise could have been subject to an order of disgorgement will be dissipated)ex,
or transferred from the jurisdiction of this Court.

G. There is good cause to believe that it is necessary to preserve and maintain the
business records defendantdohn K. Marcum and Guaranty Reserves Trust, LLC, and relief
defendant Marcum Companies LLC, from destruction.

H. Therefore, th®©rderof Preliminay Injunction Asset Freezegnd Other Ancillary
Reliefshould be, and is, granted as set forth more fully below.

IT ISTHEREFORE ORDERED:

DEFENDANTSARE PRELIMINARILY ENJOINED FROM VIOLATING THE
REGISTRATION PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIESACT OF 1933

Defendantstheir agents, servants, employees, attorneys, entities under their control, and
those persons or entities in active concert or participation with them wdigeectual notice of
this Order, by personal service or otherwise, and each of #rerherebyreliminarily enjoined
from violating Sections 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §8 Afe(d4})] by,
directly or indirectly, in the absence of any applicable exemption:
A. Unless a registration statement is in effect as to aisgamaking use of any
means or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commef¢beomails
to sell such security through the use or medium of any prospectus or otherwise;
B. Unless a registration statement is in effect as to aisgaarrying or causing to
be carried through the mails or in interstate commerce, by any means or émtt @i

transportation, any such security for the purpose of sale or for deliveryaéeors



C. Making use of any means or instruments of transportation or communication in
interstate commerce or of the mails to offer to sell or offer to buy througlséher medium of
any prospectus or otherwise any security, unless a registration statemdaten filed with the
SECas to such security, or whiled registration statement is the subject of a refusal order or
stop order or (prior to the effective date of the registration statemenpustig proceeding of
examination under Section 8 of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77h].

. DEFENDANTSARE PRELIMINARILY ENJOINED FROM VIOLATING
SECTION 17(A) OF THE SECURITIESACT OF 1933

Defendants, their agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and those peastivs i
concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order rbgrae service or
otherwise, and each of them, be and herebpr@leninarily enjoined fom, directly or
indirectly, in violation of Section 17(a) of the Securithes [15 US.C. 8 77q(ajl), 77qg(a)(2)
and 77g(a)(3)], and in connection with the offersale of securities, by the use of any means or

instrumentality of interstate commerceadithe mails, or of any facility of any national securities

exchange:
A. employing any device, scheme or artifice to defraud;
B. making any untrue statement of material fact or omitting to state a material fact

necessary in order to make the statements madee iight of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; or
C. engaging in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.



V.

DEFENDANTSARE PRELIMINARILY ENJOINED FROM VIOLATING
SECTION 10(B) AND RULE 10B-5 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

Defendantstheir agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and those persons in active
concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of this Order réynae service or
otherwise, and each of them, be and herebprleninarily enjoinedfrom, diredly or
indirectly, in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78j(b)], and Rule 10b-
5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. §8 240.10b-5], and in connection with the purchase or sale of securities,
by the use of any means or instrumentality of intezstammerce or of the mails, or of any
facility of any national securities exchange:

A. employing any device, scheme or artifice to defraud;

B. making any untrue statement of material fact or omitting to state a material fact
necessary in order to make the staeta made, in the light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; or

C. engaging in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would

operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person

ALTERNATIVE MEANS OF SERVICE OF PROCESS

A. Notice of this Order, or any other Orders of the Court or notices required to be
issued bythe SEC may be accomplished by delivery of a copy of the Ordeoticanby first
class mail, overnight delivery, international express mail, facsimile, electrail, or
personally, by agents or employeest@SEC (i) upon any defendasitrelief defendanbr on
their attorney(s)and (ii) upon any bank, saving and loan institution, credit union, financial

institution, transfer agent, brokdealer, investment company, titte company, commodity trading



company, storage company, or any other person, partnership, corporation, entiégéhat
may be subject to any provisionai Order.

B. Service of pleadings governed by Rule 4 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,
including service of the summons and complaint, ynade personally, by facsimile, by
email, by overnight courier, or by mail upon each defendahéf defendankhis or her attorney,
his or her U.S. agents, including defendant John K. Marcum, and any of their respective
affiliates, to the extent pernid by law, by representatives of tBEC representatives of the
United States Postal Service, federal marshals, any other qualified peesaheoage of 21
years, or by an alternative provision for service permitted by Rule 4 of theaFBdées of Cril

Procedure, including the issuance of letters rogatory, or as this Courineaybg further order.

V. ASSET FREEZE ORDER
Pending further order of this Court, thesetFreezeOrder(Dkt # 12)entered by the
Court on August 26, 2013 shall continue in full force and effect, and all such fund$and ot

assets shall remain frozen.

V1. ORDER PROHIBITING DESTRUCTION OF RECORDS
Pending further order of this Court, the order barring the destruction of documents
imposed by paragraph V of the Order for Temporary Restraining Order and @ttikarax

Relief (Dkt # 11) entered by the Court on August 26, 2013 shall continue in fodl &ord effect.

VII. AN ACCOUNTING

Within seven (7) calendar days of the issuance of this Order, each defendaelief
defendant shall each make a sworn accounting to this Court in the manner setdartihel

sworn accounting shall cover the period from January 1, 2010 to the present.



A. The sworn accounting shall reflect (a) all assets, funds and property teceive
directly or indirectly, from anyone who invested in, provided loans to, or otherange directly
or indirectly, assets, funds or property to defendants or relief defendant; (i dbataf such
funds or value of such assets; (c) the location of where such funds were put and for ¢ach loca
provide the name and address of the bank or other financial institution, the account name, the
acount number and the approximate date on which the funds were placed at the location;
(d) the uses to which such funds were put; and (e) the amounts of any remaining &éssdts or
and their location and for each location provide the name and address of the bank or other
financial institution, the account name, the account number and the approximate datehon whi
the funds were placed at the location.

B. For defendant John K. Marcum, the sworn accounting shall further reflect
(a) all assets, funds and property received, directly or indirectly, fromliany, c
(b) the amount of such funds or value of such assets; (c) the location of where suchefiends w
put and for each location provide the name and address of the bank or other financiabmstituti
the acount name, the account number and the approximate date on which the funds were placed
at the location; (d) the uses to which such funds were put; and (e) the amounts of ampgema
assets or funds and their location and for each location provide the name and addresskf the ba
or other financial institution, the account name, the account number and the apprositaate
which the funds were placed at the location.

C. For defendarst and relief defendanthe sworn accounting shall further reflect all
of his assets and liabilities, wherever such assets and liabilities are locatedck such asset
and liability, the accounting shall include: (a) a description of the asset itityligb) the

amount or value or the asset or liability; (c) the locatibthe asset or liability, including when



appropriate the name and address of the bank or other financial institution in whisbethera
liability is located, the account name, and the account number; (d) the date theaassequired
or the date thadbility was incurred; and (e) whether the asset is encumbered and, if so, the

nature of the encumbrance, including the identity of the creditor or lien-holder.

VIII. OTHER RELIEF

A. The United States Marshal in any district in which dafendanbr relief
defendant resides, transacts business or may be found is authorized and directecéovicake

of process upon any defendantrelief defendant at the request of 8tC

B. This Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for all purposes.
C. Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(c), no security is required of the
SEC
IX. PRESERVATION OF RIGHTSAND PRIVILEGES

Nothing in this Order shall be construed to require that defendamelief defendant
abandon or waive any constitutional or other legal privilege whichrttagyhave available to
themincluding theFifth Amendment privilege against saficrimination.In turn, nothing in
Order shall prevent thi @ ECfrom opposing or challenging any assertity defendanor relief
defendanbf any Fifth Amendment privilege against sel€rimination, or any other

constitutional or other legal privilege.



X.

DURATION OF ORDER
This Order ofPreliminary InjunctionAsset Freeze, and Other Ancillary Rebégll

remain in effect until entry of a Final Judgment in, or other final disposition efattion.

IT 1S SO ORDERED.

Date:

e 09/09/2013
SARAH EVANS BARKER, JUDGE
United States District Court
Southern District of Indiana

Copies to:

Electronically registered counsel of record



